
 

1 

 
 
AREA PLANS SUBCOMMITTEE C 
Wednesday, 20th December, 2006 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins, Research and Democratic Services 
Tel: 01992 564607 Email: mjenkins@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors K Wright (Chairman), Mrs M McEwen (Vice-Chairman), Mrs D Collins, P Gode, 
Mrs H Harding, D Jacobs, D Kelly and R Morgan 
 
 
 
 
 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. 
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 

 



Area Plans Subcommittee C  Wednesday, 20 December 2006 
 

2 

  The last meeting of Area Plans Sub-Committee C were cancelled due to lack of 
business, therefore the minutes of the previous Sub-Committee meeting of 25 October 
2006 will need to be confirmed. 
 

 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Head of Research and Democratic Services) To declare interests in any item on this 
agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 
and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. PLANNING APPEALS REPORT  (Pages 11 - 14) 
 

 8. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 15 - 46) 
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications as 
set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 9. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Head of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 



Area Plans Subcommittee C  Wednesday, 20 December 2006 
 

3 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee. A map 
showing the venue will be attached to the agenda. 
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes and if you are not present by the time your item is considered, the 
Subcommittee will determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers 
presentations. The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either 
the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should 
the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they 
are required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Plans Sub-Committee C Date: Wednesday, 25 October 

2006 
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.34  - 8.25 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

K Wright (Chairman), Mrs D Collins, P Gode, Mrs H Harding, D Jacobs, 
D Kelly and R Morgan 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

  

  
Apologies: Mrs M McEwen (Vice Chairman) 
  
Officers 
Present: 

R Bintley (Principal Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services 
Assistant) G Lunnun (Democratic Services Manager) and A Hendry 
(Democratic Services Officer) 

  
 

33. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meeting. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the Council’s protocol for webcasting of Council and other meetings be 
noted. 
 

34. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 
 

35. MINUTES  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2006 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 

36. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Morgan 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being a 
member of Sheering Parish Council. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
application and voting thereon: 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Area Plans Subcommittee C  Wednesday, 25 October 2006 

2 

• EPF/0929/06 – Land at Builder’s Yard, The Street, Sheering 
 

37. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee. 
 

38. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 

RESOLVED: 
 

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 2 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes. 
 

39. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 

Page 8



Report Item no.1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0929/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land at Builders Yard 

The Street 
Sheering 
CM22 7LY 
 

PARISH: Sheering 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use to taxi-hire business. 

 
DECISION: GRANTED 
 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on the 14/08/06 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

3 The use hereby permitted shall not operate outside the hours of 7am and 6.30pm 
Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Public Holidays. 
 

4 There shall be no vehicular access from the application site outlined in red on the 
approved plans to the adjoining land south of the site for the purposes of 
manoeuvring, parking and storing or vehicles. 
 

5 Prior to the first use of the site for the use hereby approved, a fence, at a minimum 
height of 1.5m shall be erected on the southern boundary of the application site. 
 

6 Prior to the commencement of the approved use details of the fence shall be 
submitted and approved pursuant to condition 5 of that notice in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The fence shall be permanently retained in that position unless 
the Local Planning Authority agrees in writing otherwise. 
 

7 The car park to be constructed shall be marked out in permanent materials and used 
only for the parking of cars associated with the approved use and not storage of cars 
or materials. 
 

8 No cars other than those owned by employees and or licensed taxis shall be parked 
on the site at any time whatsoever. 

 

Page 9



 
 
Report Item no.2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0406/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 17 The Paddocks 

Stapleford Abbotts 
Epping 
Essex 
RM4 1HG 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of railings and gates.  

 
DECISION: REFUSED 
 
 
In view of the fact the development has already been carried out, the committee also authorised 
the service of an enforcement notice to ensure removal of the railings and gates, with an indication 
the applicants should be allowed 3 months in which to comply. 
 
 
Reason for Refusal: 
 
The form and design of the railings and gates erected around the front of this property are 
considered to be out of character and thus detrimental to the amenity of the area contrary to the 
requirements of Policy DBE9 of the Adopted Local Plan. 

Page 10



Report to Area Plans Sub-Committee C 
 
Report reference:  PLN/002/2006-07. 
Date of meeting:  20 December 2006. 
 
 
Subject: Probity in Planning – Appeal Decisions, April 2006 to September 2006. 
  
Officer contact for further information:  Barry Land   (01992 – 56 4110). 
 
Democratic Services Officer:   Gary Woodhall  (01992 – 56 4470). 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Planning Appeal Decisions for the period April 2006 to September 2006 
be noted. 

  
Background: 
 
1. In compliance with the recommendation of the District Auditor, this report advises the 
decision-making committees of the results of all successful appeals, particularly those 
refused by committee contrary to officer recommendation. The purpose is to inform the 
committee of the consequences of their decisions in this respect and, in cases where the 
refusal is found to be unsupportable on planning grounds, an award of costs may be made 
against the Council. 
 
2. To set the context, a Best Value Performance Indicator was for district councils to aim 
to have less than 40% of their decisions overturned on appeal with the national average of 
about 33%.  That BVPI was scrapped but recently replaced by one which records planning 
appeals only (not advertisement, listed buildings, enforcements or tree related appeals) and 
where the Council sets its own target – set this year at 24%.   In fact in recent years the 
Council has been more successful than the national average with only 25% lost in 2000/01, 
24% in 2001/02, 27% in 2002/03, 18% in 2003/04, 29% in 2004/05 and 22% in 2005/06. 
 
Performance: 
 
3. Over the six-month period between April and September 2006, the Council received 
59 decisions on appeals – 54 planning and related appeals and 5 enforcement appeals.  Of 
the 54 planning and related appeals, 13 were allowed (or part-allowed contrary to the 
Council’s case) (24%) and none of the 5 enforcement appeals  – a combined total of 22% of 
the Council’s decisions being overturned. 
 
4. For the BVPI, which only considers appeals against the refusal of planning permission 
(and regards all ‘part-allowed’ appeals as decisions against the Council even though the 
result may have been entirely in line with the Council’s case), the performance figure is 26%. 
 
Planning Appeals: 
  
5. Of those 13 appeals allowed, 5 were allowed following decisions by committee to 
refuse contrary to officer’s recommendation.  Those 5 were: 
 

• EPF/1050/05 – 46 & 48, Albert Road, Buckhurst Hill – two x three storey 
blocks for 11 flats (Area Plans A 02/11/05); 

• TRE/EPF/880/05 – Former Beaver Eng. Site, Manor Road, Chigwell – felling 
two trees (Area Plans A 07/09/05); 

• EPF/181/05 – Land r/o Diggens Court, High Road, Loughton – three storey 

Agenda Item 7

Page 11



block of 12 flats (Area Plans A 07/09/05); 
• EPF/1781/05 – Land r/o Diggens Court, High Road, Loughton – three & four 

storey block of 13 flats (Area Plans A 04/01/06); and 
• EPF/978/05 – 3 Upper Park, Loughton – extensions and conversion to 4 flats 

(Area Plans A 10/08/05). 
 
6. To complete the picture, officers were successful in sustaining a committee decision 
to refuse, when officers had recommended granting permission, in 2 cases: 

 
• EPF/1777/04 – Land at 5 Coopersale Common, Coopersale – erection of a 

pair of semi-detached houses (Area Plans B 09/03/05); and 
• EPF/1155/05 – Land at Theydon Mount – green burial ground with car park 

(Area Plans C 16/11/05).   
 
Costs: 
 
7. No awards of costs were made in this 6-month period against the Council, but the 
Council were successful in obtaining a partial award of costs when an appellant withdrew his 
enforcement appeal at a very late stage, relating to Magdalen Laver Hall. 
 
Conclusions: 
 
8. The Council’s performance for this 6-month period continues to be a reflection of the 
quality of decision-making by both officers and members at committee, though some 
individual decisions were disappointing.     
 
9. The decisions are listed in the Members Bulletin from time to time but a full list of 
decisions over this six month period appears at appendix 1. 

Page 12



Appendix 1 
Appeal Decisions April to October 2006 
 
Planning Appeals Allowed: 
 
1. EPF/1050/05 – Two blocks for 11 flats at 46 & 48, Albert Road, Buckhurst Hill. 
2. EPF/424/05 – Erection of 10 apartments at 118, High Road, Chigwell. 
3. EPF/2395/04 – Detached dwelling at rear of 122, High Road, Chigwell. 
4. TRE/EPF/880/05 – Felling of two horse chestnuts at Former Beaver Eng Site, Manor 

Road, Chigwell. 
5. TEL/EPF/1423/05 – 10m high telecommunications mast at junction of Lambourne 

Road and Orchard Way, Chigwell. 
6. EPF/978/05 – Extensions and conversion to 4 flats at 3, Upper Park, Loughton. 
7. EPF/181/05 – Erection of 3 storey block of 12 flats at land rear of Diggens Court, High 

Road, Loughton. 
8. EPF/1781/05 – Erection of 3 and 4 storey block of 13 flats at land rear of Diggens 

Court, High Road, Loughton. 
9. EPF/1917/04 – Conversion of barn to a live/work unit at Berwick Hall Farm, Abbess 

Roding. 
10. EPF/157/06 – Erection of detached house at land to side of 59, Homefield, Waltham 

Abbey. 
11. EPF/267/05 – Conversion of two barns to one dwelling at land adj Rosemead, Pynest 

Green Lane, Waltham Abbey. 
 
Planning Appeals Part-Allowed: 
       
12. EPF/1401/05 – Erection of gates and fence at Brielands, Kendal Avenue, Epping 

(fence was allowed but gates dismissed). 
13. A/EPF/349/06 – Illuminated hotel signage at Travelodge, Epping Road, Bovinger (two 

signs were allowed but two dismissed). 
14. EPF/324/05 – Two storey side and single storey rear extensions at 33, Laburnam 

Road, Coopersale (rear extension was allowed and side extension dismissed in 
accordance with the Council’s case). 

15. EPF/1512/05 – Two storey side and single storey rear extensions at 11A, Woodland 
Road, Loughton (rear extension allowed but side extension dismissed in accordance 
with the Council’s case). 

16. EPF/2410/04 – Erection of timber fencing to curtilage of listed building at Brick Lock 
Cottage, Glen Faba, Roydon (1m high palisade fencing was allowed but 2m high 
close-boarded fencing dismissed in accordance with the Council’s case). 

 
Planning Appeals Dismissed: 
 
17. EPF/1159/05 – Detached garage at Westwards, Ardmore Lane, Buckhurst Hill. 
18. EPF/270/05 – Loft conversion at 4, Fontayne Avenue, Chigwell. 
19. EPF/865/05 – Erection of detached house and garage on site of ‘Beagles Hut’, 

Retreat Way, Chigwell. 
20. EPF/2001/04 – New roof to swimming pool at 39, Stradbroke Drive, Chigwell. 
21. EPF/658/05 – First floor rear extension at 6A, Palmers Hill, Epping. 
22. LB/EPF/673/05 – Listed building application for a first floor rear extension at 6A, 

Palmers Hill, Epping.  
23. EPF/1857/05 – Change of use of barn to business use at Creeds Farm, Bury Lane, 

Epping. 
24. EPF/1777/04 – Erection of pair of semi-detached houses at 5 Coopersale, Common, 

Coopersale, Epping. 
25. EPF/2233/05 – Erection of one and a half storey side extension at Takeleys Manor, 

Upland Road, Epping Upland. 
26. LB/EPF/2234/05 – Listed building application for the above at Takeleys Manor, 

Epping Upland. 
27. EPF/2355/04 – Erection of two storey side extension at Takeleys Manor, Epping 

Page 13



Upland. 
28. LB/EPF/2356/04 – Listed building application for the above at Takeleys Manor, 

Epping Upland. 
29. EPF/2188/04 – Change of use from agricultural to residential plus erection of 12 units 

at Nine Ashes Farm, Rookery Road, High Ongar. 
30. EPF/1624/05 – Detached bungalow at Harley Cottage, 202, Nine Ashes Road, High 

Ongar. 
31. EPF/1178/05 – Conversion of barn to dwelling at Forest Lodge, Manor Road, Abridge. 
32. EPF/1134/05 – Single storey side extension at Holmhurst, Manor Road, Loughton. 
33. EPF/1180/05 – First floor rear extension at 31, Connaught Avenue, Loughton. 
34. EPF/219/05 – Rear conservatory at 1, Slate Cottages, High Lane, Matching. 
35. EPF/882/05 – Single storey dwelling at Mamelons Farm, Waltham Road, Nazeing. 
36. EPF/1064/05 – Change of use to parking area at land at Tatsfield Avenue, Nazeing. 
37. EPF/1593/05 – Change of use of glasshouses to B8 storage at Oakleigh Nursery, 

Paynes Lane, Nazeing. 
38. EPF/1891/04 – Retention of building for use as offices and vehicle repairs at Lakeside 

Nursery, Pecks Hill, Nazeing. 
39. EPF/1892/04 – Retention of building for vehicle repairs at Lakeside Nursery, Pecks 

Hill, Nazeing. 
40. EPF/1893/04 – Erection of building for vehicle repairs at lakeside Nursery, Pecks Hill, 

Nazeing. 
41. EPF/11/06 – Two storey side and rear extension at 12, Bluemans, North Weald. 
42. EPF/203/04 – Use of land to site two mobile homes and two touring caravans at Bulls 

Farm, Harlow Road, Roydon. 
43. EPF/970/05 – Single storey side and front extensions at Hunters Brook, Epping Road, 

Broadley Common, Roydon. 
44. EPF/1229/05 – Extensions and conversion of bungalow to two houses at Inglenook, 

Epping Road, Broadley Common, Roydon. 
45. EPF/306/04 – Continuation of use as livery stables at Maybanks Farm, Epping Road, 

Toot Hill, Stanford Rivers. 
46. EPF/1658/04 – Retention of balcony, garage and car port at Homeview, Ongar Park, 

Stanford Rivers. 
47. EPF/1155/05 – Green burial ground with store building and car park at Mount End, 

Theydon Mount. 
48. EPF/2177/05 – Two storey side extension at High Warren, Theydon Mount. 
49. EPF/855/05 – Detached bungalow at land to side of 200, Roundhills, Waltham Abbey. 
50. EPF/1131/05 – Detached dwelling at 49, Broomstick Hall Road, Waltham Abbey. 
51. EPF/1725/05 – Erection of detached dwelling at 59, Homefield, Waltham Abbey. 
52. EPF/2458/04 – Gates and railings at Brookview, 2, Halley Road, Waltham Abbey. 
53. EPF/499/06 – Retention of illuminated shop sign at 47 Highbridge Street, Waltham 

Abbey. 
54. EPF/1297/05 – Construction of detached house at Wardens Hall Farm, Fyfield Road, 

Willingale. 
 
Enforcement Appeals Dismissed: 
 
55. Siting of a garden shed on a parking bay at 23, Willow Tree Close, Abridge. 
56. Creation of a balcony on roof of rear extension at 42, Dickens Rise, Chigwell. 
57. Business use of flat at 129, Pyrles Lane, Loughton. 
58. Retention of buildings for offices and vehicle repairs at Lakeside Nursery, Pecks Hill, 

Nazeing. 
59. Use for car washing and valeting at Rocky’s Filling Station, High Road, Thornwood. 
 

Page 14



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘C’ 

Date 20 December 2006 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1. EPF/1614/06 24 Great Stony Park 

High Street, 

Ongar 

GRANT 17 

2. EPF/1787/06 Land adj to 22 Cleverley Road, 

Ongar 

GRANT 21 

3. EPF/2141/06 Maybanks Farm, 

Epping Road,  

Ongar 

GRANT 26 

4. EPF/2142/06 Maybanks Farm,  

Epping Road, 

Ongar 

REFUSE 33 

5. EPF/2079/06 Land to the East of Willow 

Mount, 

Epping Road, 

Ongar 

GRANT 38 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1614/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 24 Great Stony Park 

 High Street 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 0TH 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Atkinson 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft conversion with conservation roof windows. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The proposed new roof light shall be of the conservation type and shall be installed 
so that it is not any higher than the surrounding roof tiles.  
 

 
 
 

 
Description of Proposal:     
 
Loft conversion with the installation of Conservation-type roof light on the rear roof slope.  
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
An end of terrace, two-storey house which is part of a conversion of the old school buildings to 
residential use. The whole area is within the Conservation area and within the Green Belt. 
  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1561/97 Conversion of school buildings to dwellings   approved 
 
 
Polices Applied: 
 
GB2A  Green Belt Policy 
HC 6 Developments in conservation areas 
HC 7 Conservation area design and materials 
DBE 9 & 10 Amenity 
 

Page 17



 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues are the impact of this proposal on the Green Belt, Conservation area and the 
amenities of neighbouring properties.  
 
1. Green Belt 
 
There will be no harm caused to the openness and appearance of the Green Belt as a result of 
this scheme. 
 
2. Conservation Area and Design 
 
The windows will be installed on the rear roof slope just above the roof of existing pitched roof 
dormers. They will be of a conservation-approved type and design which will be in keeping with 
the character and appearance of the building and the area. The Council’s Conservation Officer has 
raised no objections to its design subject to conditions regarding materials.  
 
Many of the objectors have commented that the scheme is out of character with the area and the 
current built form. However, this is a very modest change, on a rear roof slope, which is less 
sensitive than a front roof slope, and it is considered that it will not affect the character of the area, 
nor set an unwelcome precedent. 
 
3. Amenity 
 
The properties that might be affected by overlooking are nos. 22 and 26 to each side and 28 to the 
rear.  
 
There will no further overlooking of the side neighbours than already occurs from the existing rear 
1st floor windows. 
 
No. 28 is some 32m distant and there is a pitched roof garage between the two properties.  
 
Therefore there will be no excessive adverse overlooking caused by this scheme sufficient to 
justify refusing permission.  
 
4. Other Matters 
 
The potential for damage to be caused to the building as a result of any building works has been 
raised by some objectors, but this is a matter to be dealt with under the building regulations and 
other legislation.  
 
Any need for separate consents from the Management Company are not relevant to this 
application.  
 
Conclusion 
 
This is a minor scheme which causes no harm to the Conservation Area or amenities of 
neighbours. It is therefore recommended for approval.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
Summary Of Representations 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – Object, as Great Stony Park is a heritage area the additional roof lights would 
be out of character. 
 
27 GREAT STONEY PARK – the houses are all identical and match other houses on the site. This 
development will be out of character with the rest of the houses and will set a precedent. This is a 
unique site and important we preserve the original design. 
 
GREAT STONY PARK RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION – in the deeds the residents must agree all 
structural changes with the freeholder. We have received no such application. In order to keep the 
site as close to the original design as possible it is essential to stop developments of this type. This 
will be out of character to the original design.  
 
26 GREAT STONY PARK – this is a conservation area and this change will affect the appearance 
of the other houses. This will set an unwelcome precedent. 
 
25 GREAT STONY PARK – I will lose my privacy as will others, will be out of character and 
destroy this unique and unspoiled complex, damage to buildings.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 19



 

 
 
 

 

 

27

24

28

59

2314

18

19

17

22

31

11

1

98

7

13

12

TCB

Great Stony Park

TH
E 

JO
H

N
S

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/1614/06 

Site Name: 24, Great Stony Park, Ongar 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 20



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1787/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land adj to 22 Cloverley Road 

Ongar  
Essex 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

APPLICANT: Mrs M Pell 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of single detached dwelling for residential use. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provision of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provisions of any Statutory 
Instrument revoking or re-enacting the Order) no windows other than any shown on 
the approved plan shall be formed at any time in the flank walls of the building 
hereby permitted without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1 Class A shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

6 Before the commencement of the development or any works on site, details of the 
landscaping of the site, including retention of trees and other natural features, shall 
be submitted in writing for the approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall be 
carried out as approved. 
 

7 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 21



Description of Proposal:  
  
This application is for the erection of a detached two storey dwelling with associated amenity 
space. The proposed dwelling is to be 6 metres wide and 8.4 metres tall. 
 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application site comprises a vacant plot of land located on the eastern side of Cloverley Road. 
Building lines within the vicinity of the site are uniform, and the road contains a mixture of dwelling 
types, ranging from detached to terraced. All are two storeys however, and are set within uniformly 
sized plots of land. 
 
 
Relevant History: 
  
EPF/507/03 – Erection of new dwelling. 
Refused planning permission and subsequently dismissed on appeal on 18/9/2003. 
  
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Core Strategy, Built Environment and Housing Provision Policies from Epping Forest District 
Council’s Adopted Local Plan: - 
CS2 – Protecting the natural and built environment. 
BE1 – Urban intensification. 
H2 – Housing development – the sequential approach. 
H3 – Location of residential development. 
H4 – Development form of new residential developments. 
 
Core, Design and Highway Policies from Epping Forest District Council’s Adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations:- 
CP7 – Urban form and quality. 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings. 
DBE2 – Effect of new buildings on surroundings. 
DBE8 – Provision of private amenity space. 
DBE9 – Amenity considerations. 
ST4 – Highway safety. 
ST6 – Vehicle parking. 
 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
There are several issues with this application: 

1. Suitability of the site for residential development and adequacy of plot. 
2. Design and appearance. 
3. Impact on neighbours. 
4. Highway considerations and other matters. 

 
1. Suitability of site for residential development and adequacy of plot. 
 
The application site lies within the built up section of Ongar, in an area that is predominantly 
residential. The Local Plan does not identify the site or surrounding area for any alternative form of 
development, and there are no policy constraints that restrict the principle of a replacement 
dwelling. Policy BE1 of the Structure Plan promotes the intensification of use of land within urban 

Page 22



areas, and PPS3 also states that re-development for housing in urban areas should maximise the 
available land. Re-development with a larger dwelling is therefore in accordance with the criterion. 
 
The previous application proposed a dwelling within the confines of the boundaries of the existing 
plot of land between Nos. 22 and 26 Cloverley Road. This was refused (and subsequently 
dismissed on appeal) on the basis of an inadequate plot (that would be out of character with 
surrounding properties) and insufficient amenity space. This application provides a larger plot size, 
which incorporates part of the existing rear garden of No. 22. This would provide a rear garden of 
some 5.2 metres in width (instead of 2.5m) for the proposed new dwelling, and would leave No. 22 
with a width of approximately 4 metres (measurements refer to the end of the garden). The 
resulting plot sizes are comparable to those for existing properties. 
 
In terms of amenity space, approximately 100 square metres are provided, which is in excess of 
what is required by the Local Plan. Overall, the revision to the plot size that has been made 
overcomes the previous issues with residential development on this site. 
 
2. Design and Appearance 
 
Aesthetically, the proposed dwelling is designed with regard to adjacent surrounding properties 
(traditionally styled early 20th century architecture) and is acceptable in the street-scene. Ridge 
height would be comparable to either neighbouring property, and the dwelling would appear as an 
acceptable feature in the street-scene. 
 
The property is to be positioned 1 metre away from the boundary with No. 26, and although the 
property is to be constructed up to the new boundary with No. 22, a gap of 3 metres is to be 
retained between the two dwellings. Consequently a terracing effect will not occur. In any case, the 
road is a mixture of terraced, semi-detached and detached properties so a terracing effect would 
not be a problematic issue.  
 
The new dwelling would respect and relate to the established building line, and in terms of the 
overall plot layout and arrangement, would relate well to the established pattern of development. 
 
3. Impact on neighbours 
 
The proposal is positioned in such a way that overlooking would not be over and above levels that 
would be expected for a conventional residential dwelling, and no undue losses of amenity will 
occur in this respect. No side windows are proposed that would give rise to overlooking. Rear 
windows at No. 22 may see some reduction in light, however the part of the proposal nearest that 
property is single storey so any effects would not be excessive.  
 
Rear windows at No. 26 nearest to the site will also suffer from some loss of light and afternoon 
sun, however this will not be at a level that would justify withholding planning permission. In any 
case, the relationship between the proposed dwelling and No. 26 will be similar to that between 
No. 26 and No. 28.  
 
4. Highway Considerations and Other Matters. 
 
No off-street parking is proposed with this development. Concern has been raised that this 
proposal would add to increased on-street parking and lead to excessive congestion within 
Cloverley Road. Adopted Vehicle Parking Standards no longer set minimum levels for vehicle 
parking, but set ceilings and maximum levels. Consequently this means that a new dwelling may 
have no off-street parking, and would still comply with Adopted Vehicle Parking Standards. Ongar 
is however not particularly well served by public transport in comparison to more urban parts of the 
district.  Many of the properties in Cloverley Road do not have off-street parking, and this is an 
established feature of this road. With comparatively few dwellings having off-street parking, and in 

Page 23



the light of the parking standards it is considered that a refusal on the basis of lack of parking 
would be very difficult to defend on appeal.  
 
Concern has been raised as to the impact of the building works on the surrounding properties, 
however these are matters that would be controlled during the Building Regulation procedures. 
Details of fencing can be controlled by way of a condition. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The revised plot size has overcome the previous reasons for refusal, and this scheme now 
proposes an acceptable dwelling within an appropriate plot size. The representations of 
neighbouring properties have been carefully considered but this proposal does not give rise to any 
issues that would justify withholding planning permission once again. The application is 
recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
Summary of Representations:  
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No comment. 
 
35 CLOVERLEY ROAD – Express concern regarding parking and road usage as no provision for 
off-street parking. Cloveley Road is rather narrow and has little provision for off-street parking. 
Most vehicles have to park on the pavement to ensure a clear passage, especially in the area of 
the proposed dwelling which is on a slight bend. On numerous occasions large vehicles have to 
get residents to move cars to enable them to get through. Also concern for emergency vehicles. 
This application can only exacerbate an already difficult situation. 
 
26 CLOVERLEY ROAD – Oppose on the grounds of over development in the road. One of these 
concerns is off street parking, which the property will not have. Cloverley is a thoroughfare for 
traffic with inadequate access for the emergency services during evenings, nighttimes and 
weekends. Request assurance that if permission is granted that any damage incurred to my 
property can be rectified and that there can be no alteration to the plans regarding windows or 
doors overlooking No. 26. Close proximity of the new house also causes great concern so I would 
like the developer to erect a 2 metre weatherboard fence from front to back of the property. Would 
like to strongly reinforce my opposition to this plan in an already overcrowded road. 
 
13 CLOVERLEY ROAD – I have no objections other than the fact that it will increase parking 
problems in this narrow road. One can see on most days, especially evenings and weekends, cars 
crammed together taking up pavement space and forcing people to walk in the road. Any more 
building will make this worse, the owner’s cars or visitors’ cars. 
 
 

Page 24



 

 
 
 

 

 

53
.6

m

58.5m

16

28

27

94
106

121

118

50

80

40

53
a

Garden
Cottage

51

51

53

49

39

12

67

77

81
63

68

Cottage

87

Grey End

nd
rin

gh
am

H
un

te
rs

 M
oo

nC
ro

ftR
ok

a

N
or

ro
w

ay

O
ak

da
leFe

rm
oy

M
ar

de
n

Ja
ya

nc
ee

H
al

ls
fo

rd

Bo
lb

er
ry

13

4

C
ot

ta
ge

Br
ae

si
de

15

11

H
al

ls
fo

rd

1

Vi
lla

TCB

H
ILL

P
E

R
S

C
LO

V
ER

LE
Y

 R
O

A
D

A 128

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 

Application Number: EPF/1787/06 

Site Name: Land adj.22, Cloverley Road, Ongar 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 25



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2141/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Maybanks Farm 

Epping Road 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9SQ 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

APPLICANT: Mr B Hollington 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of hay barn. (Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 
 
The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 
 
The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 
  
The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 
 

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  
 
The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 
 

Page 26



The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

4 The hay barn hereby approved shall only contain hay cut from the application site as 
indicated in blue on the submitted plan all hay shall be stored within this and the two 
existing buildings at the site only. No hay shall be stored externally including none 
on any moveable trailers at the site, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 

5 Before work commences on the site, details of the foundations to the proposed hay 
barn shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
details as agreed shall be carried out thereafter. 
 

6 The hardstanding and access road to the new barn, as shown on the approved plan, 
shall be grasscrete only, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

7 Before the hay barn is first brought into use, a drawing shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority showing the number and position of any trailer to be stored 
at the site. The details as agreed shall be adhered to thereafter, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 The position of the new access gates as shown on approved drawing no. 1104/5A 
shall be carried out and completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority 
before the hay barn hereby agreed is first brought into use. The details of the size 
and appearance of the gates shall be agreed prior to their installation on the site. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Details of Proposal: 
 
Erection of barn for hay storage, measuring 7.62m x 30.5m in area and 6m high to the central roof 
ridge. Externally, the barn would be finished in a dark green plastic coated profiled steel sheeting 
on three sides and would be located on the eastern extremity of the site, approximately 30 metres 
back from the road and adjacent to the site boundary with Toot Hill Golf course. It will be served by 
a new access, set in grasscrete, continuing from the existing vehicular access to the site.    

  
  
Description of Site: 
 
The site lies on the south side of Epping Road and is accessed from the road leading into a field 
serving a stable building, a barn, a number of vehicle trailers with a roughly surfaced forecourt. 

Page 27



Along this frontage to the road, there is a hedge, which continues east beyond the site boundary. 
The site extends southwards from these buildings and is fenced into paddocks. The land rises 
south within the applicants land to a peak, beyond which there is a field for the growing of hay. 
Also on the road frontage, west of the stables, there is a Grade II listed farmhouse, occupied by 
the applicant. To the north, there is residential development, to the east Toot Hill Golf Course; 
otherwise this is open countryside.      

 
 
Relevant History 
 
EPF/423/95 – Farm store building – Granted.  
EPF/1607/98 – Conversion of barn to stables, consisting of 12 loose-boxes – Granted subject to a 
condition stating no livery use. 

EPF/116/00 – Proposed barn – Refused planning permission and Dismissed on Appeal: - harm to 
openness of Green Belt and visually intrusive from the road. 

EPF/306/04 – Continued use of Stables for Livery purposes – Refused planning permission and 
subsequent appeal dismissed: - Harm to the Green Belt and to residential amenity. 

EPF/1654/06 – Erection of Hay Barn – Withdrawn by the applicant.  

EPF/1655/06 – Use of existing stables for the livery of up to 10 horses and new access to the site 
– Withdrawn by the applicant. 

 

 

Relevant Policies 
 

Local Plan policy GB2A and Structure Plan policy C2 – Development not be granted for 
development unless it is appropriate to the Green Belt. 

GB11 – Criteria for assessing agricultural buildings. 

LL2 – Development in countryside respect character of landscape and/or enhance its appearance. 

DBE2 and DBE9 – Harm to the amenities of local residents living in the vicinity of the site. 

  

 

Issues and Considerations 
 
The main issues in this case are:  

1. Whether the proposed hay barn is appropriate in Green Belt terms 
2. Would it adversely affect the appearance of the locality, including the openness of the 

Green Belt 
3. Would it harm the amenities of the residents living in the vicinity of the site. 

 

1. Appropriate Development in the Green Belt 

A good deal of the applicant’s overall site is laid out as paddocks for horses kept on the land. But 
out of sight from the current buildings over a hill and south of the site the applicant produces a hay 

Page 28



crop from land in his ownership, which he states is sold from the farm. One cut, he states, is taken 
each summer and currently 4000 bales are produced each year. Evidence has been submitted of 
hay sales for the last couple of years, including hay sales to the livery tenants on the site. He is 
seeking other land, despite selling off land in Mill Lane in the last 10 years, to increase further the 
amount of hay for sale. The current barn stores some of the hay, but he claims that the remaining 
hay seen on the site stored on up to 14 trailers and in small covered stacks in the open is the 
remaining hay from the land. Farm equipment, tractors etc are also generally stored outside. The 
proposed hay barn will therefore allow a greater and more satisfactory area for hay storage (up to 
5,460 bales) as well as dry, covered storage of unsold hay, rather than the unsatisfactory, 
unsightly storage on trailers. Whilst some of the hay will be used by the horses on the land (a non-
agricultural use) the majority would appear to be for genuine agricultural business use. Officers 
therefore consider the proposal is appropriate development in principle in the Green Belt. 
Admittedly, this is a different view from the Planning Inspector on the 2001 appeal for a larger hay 
barn, who considered the mixed use of the site involving a non-agricultural use (keeping of horses) 
made this an inappropriate use. The proposal therefore complies with policy GB2A of the Local 
Plan. 

 

2. Visual Impact 

 

The previously dismissed appeal hay barn was to be twice the width and 0.7 metres higher than 
the proposal. It was also proposed to be in a more open position in the field, behind the existing 
buildings, such that the Planning Inspector concluded that it would harm the openness of the 
Green Belt and be prominently visible from the road and houses opposite. The recent withdrawn 
hay barn (EPF/1654/06) was to be adjacent to the front boundary of the site to the road, partly 
concealed behind the existing hedge and served by a re-sited new vehicular access. Officers 
urged the applicant to withdraw this because it would have been too dominant and bulky in this 
position, and the new access directly opposite 22 Epping Road, would have been very 
unneighbourly.    

 

It is acknowledged that this is a large structure, but hay barns generally are on most farms. There 
appears to be a need for it, so the proposed location towards the tree and hedged eastern 
boundary with the golf course would ensure some good screening to lessen its impact.  In this 
position, there is also hedge screening to the road, although further soft landscaping is also 
required to ensure further screening is provided. From the road, the proposal will be 30 metres 
away and 55 metres from the nearest house. The access will remain in the same position and the 
use of grasscrete will help to safeguard against the current hardstanding being too extensive or 
harmful to the appearance of the countryside. A dark green external finish is also appropriate in 
this rural location.  

 

In this position it is also lower than the road. An alternative to locate it directly behind the stables 
would be in more of a hollow on the site where it is prone to flooding and therefore not suitable for 
the storage of hay. Behind the applicants own house, it will be in an elevated position and very 
prominent in the landscape. 

 

On balance therefore, it is considered that the building is in a suitable location on the site and by 
being over to one side, it will not clutter up the appearance of buildings on the site. It therefore 
complies with policy GB11 and LL2 of the Local Plan. 

 

3. Neighbouring Residents Living Conditions  

Page 29



 

As already stated, this is a large building and potentially could appear bulky in appearance. The 
neighbours will have view of it from upper floor windows of their houses, but from street level, it will 
be reasonably screened to not cause loss of outlook or visual amenity. Vehicular movement 
associated with the agricultural use is not considerable and the new hay barn should not add 
unreasonably to traffic movement to and from the site. The vehicular entrance would be improved 
by setting new gates back into the site to allow a vehicle to turn into this area before entering the 
site, and therefore be clear of the highway. The proposal complies with policies DBE2 and 9. 

 

4. Other Matters 

 

The hay barn will be sited close to an oak tree on the golf course boundary. It will not interfere with 
its crown spread, but is likely to potentially affect its roots if deep foundations are dug. Details of 
foundations are therefore required and are conditioned. 

 

The Parish Council comments have been carefully considered. The site overall is of poor 
appearance to the road and particularly to the residents living opposite. There are numerous 
trailers scattered around the site, which are no longer going to be required for the storage of hay. It 
is therefore appropriate in this case to impose a condition stating that all hay shall be stored in the 
barns on the site (and cut from the land only) and there shall be no external storage of hay. Any 
built development will require further planning permission and therefore it is not necessary to 
impose further restrictions by condition when the merits of any future scheme can be judged at 
that time. A condition restricting the use to non-industrial again is not necessary, as the use of the 
barn for other purposes will require a new planning application.  

 

Conclusion 

 

In summary, the proposal is appropriate development in the Green Belt and in a relatively 
sheltered location, will not be visually imposing on the openness of the Green Belt or the street 
scene. The visual and residential amenities of the local residents will not be seriously impaired. On 
balance, it is considered that a further additional building is acceptable.  

 

However, to preserve the open character of the surrounding countryside, any further development 
proposals are likely to be refused planning permission.  

 

 

Summary of Representations 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – No Objection, subject to site cleaned up and existing trailers removed, no 
outside storage of hay, more screening (particularly to protect nos. 36 and 40 on higher ground), 
no further development on site (no infill between proposed and existing building), non-industrial 
use order to be imposed. Given history of this site we would like to see some legal agreement 
drawn up imposing these provisos. Such an agreement to have the force of Law behind it whereby 
Court action would ensue if agreement were broken – in order to protect local residents interests 
given how enforcement notices and planning restrictions are blatantly ignored. 

Page 30



30 EPPING ROAD – Object. Barn is excessive in size for the volume of hay currently used or sold 
off site. Size of barn appears to depend on whether the applicant purchases further land, but true 
that the current loaded trailers littering the site appear to be in excess of the applicants current 
demand, therefore concerned about an increase in traffic movements generated by the sale of 
hay, irrespective of being sold in bulk or small amounts. Object to bulk and size of the building 
within the countryside. 

8 EPPING ROAD – Constant planning applications and appeals because of what applicant wants 
all the time and it is us who have to look at this building everyday and do not wish for our 
countryside and views to be blighted anymore by another barn, site already over-developed, even 
if requires landscaping his last attempt to plant conifers for screening didn’t even grow and the 
suggested proper management of the existing pond and surrounding areas is unlikely to occur 
given his neglect of this over the last 10 years since we have lived here, building be unsightly, 
make more noise and danger for us if catch fire. 

CAMPAIGN TO PROTECT RURAL ESSEX – Object. Hay barn is too large and too obtrusive in 
the Green Belt. 

18 EPPING ROAD – Further intrusive development in the Green Belt and fail to enhance the 
character of the local countryside as covered under policy GB11 (ii) and (iii), erection of another 
barn will impede outflow of water in times of flood, which the locality is prone to and has suffered 
serious flood damage on at least two occasions. 

22 EPPING ROAD – Third barn at the site will detract from Green Belt openness and visual 
amenities of residents, no change from previous dismissed appeal for a hay barn, current buildings 
were meant to be agricultural buildings, does not store agricultural crop as stated and only uses it 
to feed the livery horses as the hay never leaves the site, no agricultural justification for this 
development, contrary to policy GB11 and applicant habitually ignores any planning condition, he 
states he is trying to expand his farm, then why does he sell off 40 acres of pasture land less than 
a mile from his house in Mill Lane, fire hazard close to residential property. 

20 EPPING ROAD – Object, increased development and area of enclosure and activity associated 
with horse movements, resulting in noise and disturbance to local residents, looking for additional 
land/hay to increase storage so expect may make future planning applications, position close to a 
ditch and therefore likely to flood here as well, he does not want it outside his house and therefore 
why is it proposed here, size of existing development is sufficient, will continue to have trailers on 
his land to cause annoyance to local residents, inappropriate development and not in keeping with 
the rural setting that existed before this piecemeal development.    

12 EPPING ROAD – Object, similar structure dismissed on appeal, be a significant over-
development of the site on green belt land which is closest to the residential properties, already 
two large barns on the property, considerable visual impact at 6.0m high which only moderate 
when trees in leaf, access road to new barn will cause noise and disturbance to residents. Site 
been significantly developed and increased commercial activity, overall appearance of site is poor 
with numerous trailers.  

PETITION SIGNED BY 26 RESIDENTS OF 17 LOCAL HOUSEHOLDS – Object, live within 250m 
of the site, believe has been enough development at this location, contravenes green Belt policy, 
barn is large and inappropriate in a residential area. Ask Parish Council to reflect view of local 
residents and object strongly. 

 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 31



  

 
 
 

 

 

2.0m
92.0m

***
**
**
**
*
*
**
*

**
**

1
28

2240

9 7

Maybanks
Farm

W
est V

iew

46

56

44

Eythorne

1

Westgate

5

Rolann

2

7

End
Willow's

Pyrgo

Elm Cottage

The Meadows

58
60

Freemans Farm

12

Does Farm

Pa
th

 (u
m

)

(um
)

Path (um)

M
87m

Pond

Pond

Pond

Pond

C
U

M
LE

Y
 R

O
A

D

H
I LL C

R
E

S
T

 R
O

A
D

EPPING ROAD

EFDC

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 

Application Number: EPF/2141/06 

Site Name: Maybanks Farm, Epping Road, Toot 
Hill, Stanford Rivers 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 32



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2142/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Maybanks Farm 

Epping Road 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9SQ 
 

PARISH: Ongar 
 

APPLICANT: Mr B Hollington 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Use of existing stables for the livery of up to seven horses. 
(Revised application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: REFUSE 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 The proposed use of the existing stables for the livery of seven horses would harm 
the openness of the character of the surrounding countryside and therefore 
represent inappropriate development in the Metropolitan Green Belt, contrary to 
policies Structure Plan policy C2 and Local Plan policies GB2A and GB8A.   
 

2 The proposal will result in undue loss of residential amenity to residents living in the 
vicinity of the site, by reason of vehicular activity and comings and goings to the site 
during unreasonable early hours of the morning, contrary to policy RP5 of the 
adopted Local Plan.  

 
 
 
 
Details of Proposal: 
 
Use of existing stables for livery of up to seven horses.    

   
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site lies on the south side of Epping Road and is accessed from the road leading into a field 
serving a stable building, a barn, a number of vehicle trailers with a roughly surfaced forecourt. 
Along this frontage to the road, there is a hedge, which continues east beyond the site boundary. 
The site extends southwards from these buildings and is fenced into paddocks. The land rises 
south within the applicants land to a peak, beyond which there is a field for the growing of hay. 
Also on the road frontage, west of the stables, there is a Grade II listed farmhouse, occupied by 
the applicant. To the north, there is residential development, to the east, Toot Hill Golf Course; 
otherwise this is open countryside.      

 
 

Page 33



Relevant History 
 
EPF/1607/98 – Conversion of barn to stables, consisting of 12 loose-boxes – Granted subject to a 
condition stating no livery use. 

EPF/116/00 – Proposed barn – Refused planning permission and Dismissed on Appeal :- harm to 
openness of Green Belt and visually intrusive from the road. 

EPF/306/04 – Continued use of Stables for Livery purposes – Refused planning permission and 
subsequent appeal dismissed in 2006:- Harm to the Green Belt and to residential amenity. 

EPF/1654/06 – Erection of Hay Barn – Withdrawn by the applicant.  

EPF/1655/06 – Use of existing stables for the livery of up to 10 horses and new access to the site 
– Withdrawn by the applicant. 

 

 
Relevant Policies 
 

Local Plan policy GB2A and Structure Plan policy C2 – Development not be granted for 
development unless it is appropriate to the Green Belt. 

GB8A – Change of use of buildings in the Green Belt. 

RP5 – Development causing noise or other disturbance to residential development. 

ST4 – Highway Safety. 

 

 
 
Issues and Considerations 
 
The main issues in this case are:  

1. Whether the activity is by definition appropriate development in the Green Belt 
2. Would it adversely affect the appearance the openness of the Green Belt 
3. Would it harm the amenities of the residents living in the vicinity of the site and  
4. Would it give rise to additional hazards to road safety. 

 

1. Appropriate Development in the Green Belt 

 

The stable building is split into 12 stalls, converted from an existing barn, and measures 14m by 
14m in area. It is set back 24 metres from the road frontage, almost in front of its site access. 
Planning permission was granted in 1999 subject to a condition stating that the stables shall not be 
used for any business or commercial activity such as livery, but only for the keeping of horses for 
private recreational purposes. At the 2005 appeal hearing against the council’s refusal of planning 
permission to use all 12 stalls of the stables for livery, it came to light that livery in the stables had 
commenced in a small way in 2001 and had expanded to the degree where all 12 stalls at the site 
were used for livery. One of the reasons the Planning Inspector dismissed the appeal was that it 
represented inappropriate development in the Green Belt. He did concede that Government advice 
in PPS 7 “Sustainable Development in Rural Areas”, defined small-scale horse enterprises as 

Page 34



those involving up to 10 horses. Given the applicant can keep 12 horses for non-business use in 
the stable, the proposed keeping of 7 for livery purposes in this planning application would appear 
to fall within this definition of “small-scale”. 

  

2. Openness of the Green Belt 

 

The stable building itself does not impact upon the openness of the Green Belt, but, as the 
Planning Inspector considered in the same appeal, it is necessary to consider the activities and 
comings and goings that stem from this use, which may harm the openness.   

 

The applicant has made a case for 7 horses for commercial livery. The internal layout of the 
stables submitted with the planning application shows 10 stalls, with the other 2 as a tack room 
and a feed room. The 3 remaining stalls will be for the applicant’s own private leisure use. The key 
issue is whether the activity associated with 7 livery horses, being fed, cleaned and cared for by up 
to possibly 7 different people, not associated with the farm or living at the site, would harm the 
openness of the surrounding countryside and Green Belt. The Planning Inspector concluded on 
the 2006 appeal “the parking of cars and horse boxes at the site in connection with the use of the 
barn as livery stables impacts on the openness of the Green Belt.” He further stated that he 
accepted the council’s argument at the time, 12 different horse owners could attend the site at any 
one time, to the detriment of the Green Belt. The objections raised by local residents have 
persuaded Planning Officers to conclude that even with a reduction to 7 livery horses, there will be 
at times a clutter of vehicles on the site open to view to the road and together with vehicle comings 
and goings associated with livery use, it would harm the openness of the Green Belt, contrary to 
policies GB2A, GB8A of the Local Plan and C2 of the Structure Plan.  

 

3. Harm to Amenities of Residents Living in the Vicinity of the Site 

 

The applicant denied on the appeal that there was early morning noise and disturbance through 
client activity before 0600 to 0630 hours. The local residents attending the appeal hearing stated 
they are disturbed at these times by vehicular activity. Despite the gate to be made quieter on 
opening and closing as well as assurances that there will be no movement before 0700, this is 
unlikely to work this effectively in reality. Those clients preparing horses for shows, displays etc. 
are likely to need an early start for preparation and to travel. Officers therefore fail to see how the 
applicant can control the action of others and the unsociable hours disturbance will continue to 
what the Planning Inspector states, in that the “…current use of the site unacceptably erodes the 
amenities that neighbouring occupiers might reasonably expect to enjoy.” This would continue 
even with the proposed lower number of horses kept for livery.  

 

It therefore conflicts with part (i) of Local Plan policy RP5, because of excessive noise from 
comings and goings to and from the site at unsociable hours. 

 

4. Highway Safety  

 

The County Council Highway Officers raise no objection to the proposal. The Planning Inspector 
also raised no objections and his suggestion of setting back the entrance to allow vehicles to pull 
off the road, could be conditioned, if permission was granted. The proposal is therefore not 
contrary to policy ST4 of the adopted Local Plan Alterations. 

Page 35



 

Conclusion 

 

Planning Officers conclude that the condition in 1999 to allow the existing barn to be converted 
into stables, but subject to no livery, was the correct recommendation in order to safeguard the 
amenities of the local residents and to ensure the use remains appropriate to the Green Belt. The 
application is recommended for refusal because it will still harm the openness and still be 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt, as well as harm the amenities of the local residents 
at unreasonable early morning hours. If Members consider this is very much a balanced decision, 
Officers did recommend a temporary one-year permission on the 2004 planning application, before 
this Committee refused it. However, the Planning Inspector on the subsequent appeal did not feel 
this would overcome the planning objections in dismissing the appeal.  

 

 
Summary of Representations 
 
PARISH COUNCI L- Object. 7am restriction un-enforceable and not practical from a horse owner 
perspective. Traffic noise early morning unacceptable.   
18 EPPING ROAD – Further intrusion into the Green Belt, fail to enhance the character of the local 
countryside. If appeal dismissed on use for 12 stables is upheld, then no further application for an 
additional hay barn will be required and the stables could revert to their origin as a hay barn, thus 
removing necessity to encroach into Green Belt countryside.   

30 EPPING ROAD – Object. Increase noise and disturbance, not certain what is currently allowed 
with regard to livery at this site, but there is a great deal of traffic movement, huge horse lorry 
parks on the site and hard to believe that livery is provided currently to only one family. Even with 
the very welcome planned changes to the entry gates and alterations to the opening to the stable. 
Concerned that the number of horses in the future will far exceed any agreed numbers sought 
now. 

22 EPPING ROAD – Very similar to application recently dismissed on appeal, only difference is 
no. of horses reduced and location of parking, but still do not make proposal acceptable, indeed 
moving of parking will require more hard surfaces and roadways, livery continue to attract car 
movements and parking in the Green Belt, detracting from the openness of the Green Belt, activity 
encourages permanent parking of horse boxes and trailers. Nature of livery means owner visits 
their horses before and after work, leading to considerable noise nuisance as gates are opened, 
cars parked and horses taken and starts at 5.45am. Understand applicant has offered to reduce 
the hours the livery is open, and horse owners are parking their cars outside the houses opposite 
and climbing over the gate early in the morning, leading to more noise nuisance to neighbours, site 
has attracted crime with break-ins and cars stolen. 

PETITION SIGNED BY 26 LOCAL RESIDENTS OF 17 LOCAL ADDRESSES – Object. Live within 
250m of the site, believe there has been enough development at this location, contravenes Green 
Belt policy, commercial use of stables already causes unacceptable noise and nuisance in a 
residential area, ask the Parish Council reflect the view of the residents and object strongly.      

Page 36



  

 
 
 

 

 

82.0m
92.0m

***
**
**
**
*
*
**
*

**
**

1

28

2240

9 7

Maybanks
Farm

W
est V

iew

46

56

44

Eythorne

1

Westgate

5

Rolann

2

7

End
Willow's

Pyrgo

Elm Cottage

The Meadows

58
60

Freemans Farm

12

Does Farm

ra
ck

Tr
ac

k

BM
83.87m

Pond

Pond

Issues

Pond

Pond

C
U

M
LE

Y
 R

O
A

D

H
ILL C

R
E

S
T

 R
O

A
D

EPPING ROAD

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 

Application Number: EPF/2142/06 

Site Name: Maybanks Farm, Epping Road, Toot 
Hill, Stanford Rivers 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 37



 
Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2079/06 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to the east of Willow Mount 

Epping Road 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

APPLICANT: Mr O’Mahony 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: New stable block. (Resubmitted application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: GRANT 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of the development.  The assessment shall 
demonstrate compliance with the principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems 
(SuDS).  The approved measures shall be carried out prior to the first occupation of 
the building hereby approved and shall be adequately maintained. 
 

3 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).   
 
If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.  
  

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have 
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these 
works shall be carried out as approved.  These details shall include, as appropriate, 

Page 38



and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels 
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and 
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below 
ground.  Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.  
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

5 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).   
 
If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.   
 

6 No external lighting shall be installed without the prior written approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

7 There shall be no commercial use of the site whatsoever.  Only domestic use by the 
applicant and his immediate family (spouse and children) is approved. 
 

8 The colour of the materials is to be approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of the works hereby approved. 
 

9 Within one month of the erection of the stables hereby approved all other buildings, 
structures and debris shall be removed from the site and no further development 
shall occur without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

10 Details of the means of storing and disposing of manure shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority and completed in accordance with these 
details prior to first occupation of the stables. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
Description of Proposal: 
     
Erection of a new stable block. The stable would be erected to the north east of the site, and would 
measure 15m x 8.3m by 3.7m high, with a pitched roof. It would have an L shape and consist of 2 
stables, hay and animal feed store and a tack store.  
 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site is an open field about 300m to the west of Toot Hill on the north side of the Epping Road. 
The land slope up to the west, and at the top of the slope is the property known as Willow Mount, 
which is in separate ownership. The land to the north of the site is classed as Ancient Landscape 
in the local plan. The site has an area of 1.01ha (2.5 acres). The whole site is within the 
Metropolitan Green Belt. There are watercourses on the northern and eastern boundaries of the 
site. The site is currently used for the keeping of horses and poultry, and there is a hardened track 
from the site access on the Epping Road.  
 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/835/87 Building for use as goat rearing farm    refused 
1992 Enforcement Notice requiring removal of goat rearing accommodation appealed and 
dismissed 1992 
EPF/0322/06 Erection of stable block     refused 
 
 
Polices Applied: 
 
Structure Plan 
C2 Development in the Green belt  
 
Local Plan 
GB2A  Green Belt Policy 
HC2  Historic Landscape 
RST4  Horse keeping 
RST5  Stables 
DBE1  Design of New Buildings 
DBE9  Excessive loss of amenity to neighbours 
LL1  Rural landscape and landscaping 
ST 6  Highway Safety 
 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues are whether the proposed stables are appropriate in this area, their impact on the 
adjacent historic landscape, whether they are of acceptable design, and whether there would be 
any impact on the amenities of the neighbouring properties and the welfare of the horses.  
 
The previous 2006 application was refused at Committee due to concerns over the welfare of the 
horses on the site, to deficiencies in the access, quality and size of pasture, water, electricity 
supply and drainage. The application was also contrary to policy HC2 as it would detract from the 
character and physical appearance of the adjacent historic landscape.  
 

Page 40



The scheme has been redesigned from the previous scheme and the area and number of the 
stables reduced from 4 to 2.  
 
1. Green Belt & Historic landscape 
 
The site already has a lean-to field shelter and domestic type shed on the land which are of no 
visual merit. The land is classed as agricultural, but the keeping of horses on land, whilst not 
agricultural, is a recognised rural type of use. It is considered that there is no harm caused to the 
openness of the Green Belt by this use of the land.  
 
As well as the two stalls the building will have the usual stable ancillary rooms (Hay, Tack etc) and 
a storage area for the feed for the poultry on the site.  
 
The building has a floor area of 69m² (from the previously proposed 117m²). Stables are generally 
considered appropriate in the Green Belt provided they do not significantly impact on the character 
and appearance of the landscape. 
 
The new stables will be erected along the northern boundary of the site, set back from the road by 
some 90m, and will be on the lower part of the site, and screened from the north and east by 
existing mature hedgerows. It is also proposed to implement further landscaping to further reduce 
the impact when viewed from the road.  
 
Due to the fall of the land, the existing screening on the boundaries of tree/ hedgerows and the 
distance involved, it would not be conspicuous from the road.  
 
The northern boundary in particular is very well screened by the mature tree line, and it is the case 
that the proposed stables will not be easily visible from the historic landscape to the north of the 
site.  
 
Therefore the scheme will cause no harm to the historic landscape. The Council’s Conservation 
Officer has raised no objection to the scheme. It is considered that this is a small scale building, 
well sited, for an appropriate Green Belt use, and due to its size and siting causes no harm to the 
openness of the Green Belt, or any harm to the historic landscape to the north. 
 
It should also be noted that a very similar scheme for 4 stables was granted permission in 2004 for 
land to the west of Willow Mount.  
 
It has been suggested by an objector that to grant permission to this proposal would be contrary to 
the Inspector’s decision to refuse permission in the 1992 appeal for the retention of two buildings 
for use as a goat farming enterprise. Whilst superficially this is a similar case the facts are 
different.  
 
In the 1992 decision the question was whether to allow the retention of two partially completed 
sheds for use as a goat farm. These sheds were located against the eastern boundary of the site 
and had a floor area of 306m², together with associated hardstand areas. 
 
The Inspector found that whilst the use was appropriate in the Green Belt ”…the size of the 
buildings and the proportion of the site that they would occupy, together with the necessary hard 
standings, I consider that they would prejudice the open character of the countryside.” He also 
found that no harm would be caused to the neighbours living conditions by the proposed use and 
there were no highway objections to the scheme.  
 
Therefore the scheme refused comprised of two adjoined buildings, with a floor area some 4 times 
greater than the single building proposed in this application. In addition areas of hardstand were 
proposed, which is not the case in this scheme.  

Page 41



 
In addition conditions can be imposed to ensure the removal of the other structures on the land, 
which will be a positive benefit to the site.  
 
Therefore this scheme is not contrary to Green Belt or Conservation polices. 
 
2. Horse Keeping 
 
Polices RST4 & 5 set out the criteria for assessing such a proposal. The use for domestic horse 
keeping is generally appropriate for the Green Belt.  
 
The dimensions of the stables are in keeping with the recommended standards in the Local Plan. 
 
It is inevitable that there will be some use of the surrounding roads and paths, but this is not 
unusual in rural areas. The applicant has confirmed that there is, and will be, no commercial use of 
the site, and this is purely for the domestic stabling of family horses, and this can be conditioned. 
 
There are a number of bridleways within the immediate vicinity, and the area of land is large 
enough to allow the exercising of the two horses on site.  
 
The applicant has provided evidence that there is an electrical and water supply to the site. 
 
The applicant has also provided veterinary evidence of the current state of the horses on the site, 
which are healthy and in good condition. The scheme now also proposes to paddock the site into 4 
separate areas to allow rotation of use by the horses and reseeding of the site. The applicant 
intends to carry this out as soon as the scheme is approved, and can be the subject of conditions.  
 
The applicant has also collected droppings on a regular basis, and this was evident during the 
Officers site visit. It was also evident that the land was in fairly good condition, with excessive 
visible rocks or other hardened material having been removed by the applicant, and was not 
excessively rutted by use by the horses. The applicant has been in discussions with the British 
Horse Society over this issue and has changed the plans to accommodate their concerns over the 
quality of the land. 
 
The British Horse Society also proposes minimum land requirements based on the area of pasture 
needed for grazing through the summer months and for horses kept in the open for 24 hours a day 
is 1 to 1 ½ acres per horse. This site meets these criteria. However this area can safely be 
reduced if the horses are to be stabled for the majority of the day and let out for several hours. 
This is the case at this site, as the owner proposes to continue his current twice daily visits to the 
site. Therefore it is considered that the area of land is more than adequate for the purposes 
proposed in this application. 
 
Although the applicant does not live in close proximity to the site (living in Chadwell Heath) he 
visits the site twice daily and has friends in the village who can visit the site if he is unable. The site 
is also fenced and there is an electric fence in position as well to keep the animals from escaping 
from the site.  
 
The Land Drainage Section have commented that they have no objections to the scheme subject 
to the relevant condition.  
 
Therefore it is considered that this scheme will have no adverse effects on the welfare of the 
horses kept on site. 
 
 
 

Page 42



3. Design  
 
The proposed block would be of an L shape with stained weatherboarding with a tile roof. The 
design and materials are considered appropriate, and are commonplace in this area, and will have 
no adverse impact in this rural area. 
 
The colour of the materials can be conditioned to assist with the building integration into the rural 
landscape. 
 
4. Access and Car Parking 
 
The access already exists and there is sufficient parking on the site for this proposed non-
commercial use.  
 
One objector has commissioned a Consultants report into the site, some of which concerns 
highways issues. This states the access is substandard and a hazard to other road users. 
 
However, the Councils Highways Department have assessed the scheme and the objector’s 
report, and their conclusion is that the use of this existing access for the level of existing and 
proposed use would not cause any highway hazard which would justify a refusal. It should be 
noted that the Inspector in the 1992 Appeal also concluded that there was no harm to highway 
safety from that scheme, which would have resulted in a significant intensification of use of the 
site.  
 
5. Effect on Neighbours 
 
The proposal can be conditioned to reduce the impact on neighbouring property to the west from 
muck heaps.  
 
There is no adverse effect to any neighbour from this scheme.  

 
Conclusion 
 
Officers consider that this scheme has overcome the previous reasons for refusal. This is a small-
scale building to be used for a non-commercial use. It is of an acceptable design, and would not 
have such an adverse effect on the Green Belt, or the adjacent historic landscape as to warrant a 
refusal. It also differs considerably in scale when compared to the previously refused scheme for a 
goat farm. It does not cause any further highway safety issues than the existing use. It is in line 
with national and local polices and therefore the recommendation is for approval. 
  
 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 
 
PARISH COUNCIL – NO OBJECTION 
 
DOES FARMHOUSE – Object, this is encroaching on and eroding the Green Belt with a view to a 
later application for a permanent dwelling. British Horse Society concerns are valid, actions are 
more important to animal welfare 
 
7 MERSEY AVENUE, UPMINSTER – I pass through this area on a regular basis and recently 
nearly had an accident with a vehicle departing from this gateway to the property.  
 

Page 43



WILLOW MOUNT – when the previous application was turned down one of the observations made 
related to the site not being suitable for grazing unless it was cleared, ploughed, covered with new 
topsoil and seeded – none of which have been undertaken.  
 
CONSULTANTS REPORT – Highway and site access is not safe or acceptable and is hazardous 
to road safety, as shown in Highway Consultants report. The quality of pasture is woefully 
inadequate and horse will use the local road network, inappropriate sized feed and tack store, 
assumed from the size of the building will allow intensification of other uses. Chemical toilet will 
need servicing and vehicle will cause hazard to road users. Real and apparent danger of 
temporary accommodation being installed.  
 
 
 

Page 44



 

 

 

***
**
**
**
*
*
**
*

****

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee  

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or 
civil proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 

Application Number: EPF/2079/06 

Site Name: Land east of Willow Mount, Epping 
Road, Stanford Rivers 

Scale of Plot: 1/3000 

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Sub C 25 October 2006

	7 Planning Appeals Report
	8 Development Control
	Sub C 20 December 2006


